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1. The Code of Practice on Access to Government

Information came into effect on 4 April 1994 and since

then has provided the information access regime for

central government Departments and agencies and

associated public bodies. This report sets out statistical

information relating to the way in which the Code of

Practice has been operated within these bodies, details

of the complaints investigated by the Parliamentary

Commissioner for Administration (the Ombudsman)

under the Code and useful information for many of the

bodies covered, such as contact details and internal

review procedures. The returns used to compile this

report relate to the calendar year 2001.

The Current Position
2. Responsibility for overseeing the operation of the Code

of Practice resides with the Freedom of Information and

Data Protection Division in the Lord Chancellor’s

Department, which is also responsible for the

implementation of the Freedom of Information Act 2000.

The Code will continue to function until implementation

of the right of access under the Freedom of Information

Act on 1 January 2005 for those bodies currently covered

by the Code. When the Freedom of Information Act

comes fully into force the Code will become redundant

and cease to have any application. The Government has

repeatedly stated its commitment to increasing openness

throughout the public sector. It has continued to make

full use of the discretionary nature of the Code of Practice

to make available as much information as possible.

Coverage of the Code of Practice
3. The scope of the Code of Practice is very broad and

continually changing as new bodies are created and

become subject to the Ombudsman’s jurisdiction and

older bodies cease to exist. The Scottish Executive and

the Welsh Assembly both introduced their own Codes

in 1999 and they are not covered by this report.

4. The Scottish Code, the Code of Practice on Access to

Scottish Executive Information, is similar to the UK code

and covers the Scottish Executive and the Scottish public

authorities within the jurisdiction of the Scottish

Parliamentary Commissioner for Administration.

The Scottish Executive passed their own Freedom

of Information Act on 24 April 2002.

5. The Code of the National Assembly for Wales, the Code

of Practice on Public Access to Information, was prepared

and adopted in accordance with the Assembly’s Standing

Order (Number 17) and against a background of the

provisions of the draft UK Freedom of Information Bill.

The Code was reviewed in Spring 2000 and a the revised

Code was approved by the First Minister and his Cabinet

and formerly adopted by the Assembly on 8 May 2001.

6. Most public bodies in Northern Ireland, including central

Departments, within the jurisdiction of the Northern

Ireland Ombudsman’s Office follow the provisions of the

Code of Practice on Access to Government Information,

working on the presumption that information should be

made widely available whenever possible. The Freedom

of Information Act 2000 extends to Northern Ireland

who follow the same rolling programme for

implementation of the Act as their counterparts in

England and Wales. 
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7. Departments continued to monitor their operation of the

Code during 2001 and collected information from their

agencies as in previous years. Some Departments

collected information from the public bodies they

sponsor that are covered by the Code. Information from

departmental returns has been summarised in the

appendices. To allow comparisons to be drawn year on

year, the monitoring requirements for this report were

the same as used for previous years.

Definition of a Code request
8. An individual asking for information from a Government

Department, or other body covered by the Code, does not

have to specifically mention the Code of Practice in their

request. All requests for any information to these bodies

should be treated in accordance with the principles of the

Code, irrespective of whether the applicant is even aware

of its existence. The Freedom of Information Act 2000

will operate on the same principle. This approach

complicates the task of monitoring the use of the Code as

it would be impracticable, for the purpose of monitoring

the Code of Practice, to include within the scope of this

report all requests for any form of information received by

those bodies covered. Therefore, for the purpose of this

report, a Code request is defined as one:

• which specifically mentions the Code

• for which a charge or standard fee is paid, or

• which is refused under one or more of the Code

exemptions.

9. It would, of course, be impossible to give an exact

assessment of the effect that the Code has had on the

broad spectrum of Government Departments and other

bodies covered, and on their customers – those people

seeking information from them. The scope of the Code is

far too wide, and its effect too far-reaching, to be able to

do this with any confidence. What this report seeks to do

is provide a broad perspective of the volume of requests

and to highlight any trends or developments and

examples of good practice.

Volume of Requests
10. Using the definition of a Code request, outlined above,

there were 4,668 recorded Code requests in the year

2001. When compared with the 2000 total of 5,969

requests, this represents a fall in the number of Code cases

of 22 % but is similar to the 4,863 requests recorded for

1999. This is the first time in the history of the Code that

the number of requests has fallen but the total number of

requests is still well above pre-1999 levels.

Sources of Requests
11. Code requests come from a wide variety of different

sources. Table one, below, shows the breakdown of Code

requests by source in all cases where Departments have

been able to identify the source. 

Table 1: Sources of requests

Requests refused
12. As can be seen from Appendix 1, only 17.1% of recorded

code requests (as defined above) were refused in 2001.

This is slightly lower than the 2000 figure of 17.9% and

substantially lower than figures of 28.8%, 46% and

Business 14%
Media 4%
Academic 2%

Charities/Lobbies 11%

MP 18%

Others 18%
Individuals 33%
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39. Proactive dissemination of information by Departments

is steadily increasing as Departments increasingly make

use of the internet and new technology. Over 2001,

Government websites greatly increased the wealth of

public sector information available to the public. In the

course of 2001 many organisational websites have been

redesigned to make them easier to use. 

40. Government websites are becoming more widely used.

The website of the Foreign and Commonwealth Office –

awarded ‘Best Government Website’ for the second year

running by the Government Forum – recorded that the

number of users registered to receive travel and news

updates increased in 2001 to 35,000. This number was

probably influenced by events such as the September 11

terrorist attack when the volume of traffic to the site

increased 10 fold. This trend towards increased proactive

information provision will continue with the introduction

of Publication Schemes under the Freedom of

Information Act in November 2002 for bodies covered

by the Code of Practice.

41. In 2001, the Code of Practice was used by a continuing

high number of applicants, with requests coming from an

increasingly varied audience. However, this year has seen

a decrease in the overall number of requests recorded as

being Code requests and the first occasion of a

Department not accepting a recommendation of the

Ombudsman. Despite this the year has also seen a

continued fall in the percentage of requests refused.

42. The implementation programme for the Freedom of

Information Act 2000 will continue to raise awareness of

and promote adherence to the existing Code within the

public sector for the few years until full implementation

of the Act.

Further information
43. Further information on the Freedom of Information Act

2000, the Code of Practice on Access to Government

Information, or copies of this report (free of charge) can

be obtained from:

Freedom of Information and Data Protection Division

Lord Chancellor’s Department

1st Floor

54-60 Victoria Street

London SW1E 6QW

T: 020 7210 8755

F: 020 7210 1415

Email: fidp@lcdhq.gsi.gov.uk
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1. This table gives the following information:

A Correspondence volumes 

Estimates of normal information flows during the

monitoring period

B Number of Code requests

Total numbers recorded by departments; numbers

answered within 20 working days; numbers of

requests for which a charge was made; and

numbers where information was refused

C Sources of requests

Categorised by:

Individuals (I)

Business (B)

Media (M)

Academics (A)

Charities, lobby groups, campaigns (CL)

MPs and Peers (MP)

Others (O)

D Internal Reviews

Numbers of reviews carried out; review outcomes

and exemptions cited at reviews.

General guidance on the Table
2. Some Non-Departmental Public Bodies (NDPBs) and

agencies have been shown separately, where this is

helpful and the figures are available. This may differ

from previous years

3. Statistics for refusals do not necessarily indicate that

the whole of the request was refused. In a number of

cases a refusal has been registered where some of the

information requested was withheld.
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Table of Code requests
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Department/ Correspondence Number of Code Requests Sources of Requests Internal Reviews
Body Volumes

Total On Charge Refused I B M A CL MP O Total Outcomes Exemptions 

time cited

Cabinet Office 26 12 0 6 10 0 11 1 1 3 0 1

21 19 1 7 8 0 9 0 2 1 1 2

79 57 3 40 39 0 17 5 2 13 3 4

6 6 0 0 0 0 4 1 0 1 0 0

5 5 0 4 1 0 1 0 0 0 3 0

530 530 0 5 13 1 21 36 408 24 27 1

49 38 0 3 21 7 2 16 1 0 2 2

14 7 1 4 3 2 2 3 0 0 5 4

10 8 0 5 0 1 8 0 0 0 1 3

13 6 0 9 4 2 6 0 0 1 0 3

19 15 0 10 5 1 12 0 1 2 (1 0 1

(1via (via for B 

MP) MP) and I)

1 Two requests were chasing progress on Code requests, one provided additional information enabling the request to be met.

3, 142 Upheld

original

decision 1

information

supplied

100,584 including

Ministerial

correspondence

Trade &

Industry

3, 142 Upheld

original

decision 1

information

supplied

4,586 ‘Treat

Officially’ items 

Lord

Chancellor’s

Department

4(x3)

12(x1)

Upheld

original

decision

5,957 Treat

Officially letters

International

Development

n/a31 1

outstanding

22,900 Ministerial

Correspondence

35,549 Treat

Officially letters

Home Office

2(x2) 14Upheld

original

decision

19,665 Private

Office cases

38,052 Treat

Officially letters

Health

n/astill on-

going

42,266

(Department only)

Foreign &

Commonwealth

Office

n/an/a146,263

(Department only)

Environment

Food & Rural

Affairs

n/an/a141,416 phone

calls 31,407 letters

33,686 emails

Education &

Skills

131 decision

upheld 3

decision

altered/

additional

information

supplied

Approx 339,000

including NDPBs

Defence

131 original

decision

not upheld

1 still out-

standing

Around 69,000

including NDPBs

Culture Media

& Sport

1(x2)

2(x4) 12

partially

upheld

original

decision

10,013 from MPs

61,114 from others

approx 15,000

emails per day
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Department/ Correspondence Number of Code Requests Sources of Requests Internal Reviews
Body Volumes

Total On Charge Refused I B M A CL MP O Total Outcomes Exemptions 

time cited

17 17 2 8 14 2 1 0 0 0 0 6

14 3 0 4 4 0 9 0 1 0 0 5

982 944 32 6 879 35 14 5 9 23 17 1

5 5 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1

3 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

7 4 0 1 0 0 7 0 0 0 0 1

1 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a n/a

3137 0

14 14 0 5; 1 10 3 0 0 1 0 0 1

refused 

in part

0

0

3 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a n/a

Information not available

20 17 2 3 3 10 5 0 0 2 0 0 n/a n/a

229 229 32 0 164 29 3 2 0 18 13 0 n/a n/a

0Head office

received 1,063

items of

correspondence

Employment

Tribunals

Service

3892 items of

official

correspondence

Employment

Service

approx 750,000HM Customs

& Excise

The Crown Prosecution Service

4,432 ‘treat

official’ letters

Court Service

approx 6 million

items received

Companies

House

0 letters Civil Justice

Council

4, 12, 14Upheld

original

decision

Information not

available

Charity

Commission

Central Office

of Information

1 letterAdvisory Board

on Family Law

2, 12case still

open 

approx 206,570

942 PQs 358

Ministerial

Correspondence

Northern

Ireland Office

n/an/aInformation not

given

Wales Office

12case still

open –

awaiting

central

guidance

2,148Scotland Office

Information suppliedAn indication of

volume from the

Central Public

Enquiry Unit:

58,566 phone

calls over 18,000

emails 506,048

website hits

Work &

Pensions

2(x3) 6

10(x3)

1 still to be

completed 2

upheld

decision

letters, faxes etc

19,998 emails,

phone calls

16,399

Treasury

2(x4) 6

9(x2) 14

15

2 upheld

original

decision 4

supplied

information

requested

Correspondence:

15,683 Ministerial

334,200 Non-

ministerial

Transport, Local

Government &

Regions
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Department/ Correspondence Number of Code Requests Sources of Requests Internal Reviews
Body Volumes

Total On Charge Refused I B M A CL MP O Total Outcomes Exemptions 

time cited

287 284 2842 0 16 266 0 0 4 0 1 0 n/a n/a

433 429 4 0 0 n/a n/a

0

1398 1370 715 643* *9 3 1 0 11 659 619 0 n/a n/a

0

18 16 0 14 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 5

252 252 223 5 53 154 4 0 0 11 30 0

1 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a n/a

20 17 1 10 6 13 0 0 0 1 0 1

1 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

2 English Nature introduced a new charging policy in June 2001 that no charge would be made except in exceptional circumstances.

13Upheld

original

decision;

apology

offered

233,627 items of

correspondence

Insolvency

Service

2,4,9Upheld

original

decision 

600,000 letters

& general

correspondence no

record of volume

of faxes & emails

Legal Services

Commission

total of 7,891,880

enquiries 

HM Land

Registry

in excess of 74

million items of

correspondence

received

Inland Revenue

(including

Valuation

Office Agency)

4(x7), 7,

14,

15(x6)

Upheld

original

decision

201,441 letters;

approx 220 emails

per day

Information

Commissioner

approx 23,273Highways

Agency

approx 500,000

general enquiries

approx 300,000

requests for

publications

Health &

Safety

Executive

in Cabinet Office

details

Government

Offices for the

Regions

where records

kept: Ministerial/

Treat Officially

Correspondence

245, Central

Public Enquiry

Line 7,052

Forestry

Commission,

Forestry

Enterprise

Agency &

Forest Research

Agency

350,000 requests

for general

information

approx 70,000

required detailed

individual

response

Environment

Agency

approx 22,730

enquiries

English Nature
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Department/ Correspondence Number of Code Requests Sources of Requests Internal Reviews
Body Volumes

Total On Charge Refused I B M A CL MP O Total Outcomes Exemptions 

time cited

37 34 0 4 in 10 12 2 9 0 0 4 1

total 10 

partial

0

0

0

1 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a

39 35 39 0 info not available

62 60 0 0 32 21 0 5 0 0 4 0 n/a n/a

2 2 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 n/a n/a

0

1 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 n/a n/a

0

0

057,145 lettersPublic

Guardianship

Office

2300 items of

correspondence

Planning

Inspectorate

Information not

available

The Patent

Office

Letters (inc faxes)

1,134 emails

9,776 phone calls

35,098 website

hits approx

5,000,000

The Ordnance

Survey

64,788 letters

5,300 emails

Occupational

Pensions

Regulatory

Authority

Enquiries: approx

1050 written

49,150 telephone

Ofwat

approx 15,000OFSTED

approx 10,813

items received

OFGEM

1341 items of

correspondence

received

Office of the

Rail Regulator

1892 of various

types

Office for

National

Statistics 

approx 6,744Office of

Government

Commerce

information not

available

National

Savings &

Investments

9Upheld

original

decision;

apologies

offered for

shortcoming

s & delays

in the

handling of

the corres-

pondence

approx 7,400

letter, email & fax

Medicines

Control Agency
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Department/ Correspondence Number of Code Requests Sources of Requests Internal Reviews
Body Volumes

Total On Charge Refused I B M A CL MP O Total Outcomes Exemptions 

time cited

1 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 n/a n/a

0

0

58 58 30 0 28 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a n/a

4663 4495 1369 797 1359 592 149 83 441 757 730 53

96.4 29.4 17.1Percentage of
all
applications

1(x4), 2(18),

3(1), 4(12),

6(2), 7(1)

9(4), 10(3),

11(1), 12(6),

13(2),

14(6), 15(7)

Decision

upheld (16)

Additional

information

supplied

(10)

Other

outcome (5)

TOTALS

6,170

correspondence

replies

Strategic Rail

Authority

NilThe Royal Mint

not recordedRadio-

communication

Agency

Approx 34,750

replies

Public Record

Office



Complaints received:
In 2001, the Ombudsman received 33 complaints under

the Code of Practice. This total includes one case that

was received by the Welsh Administration Ombudsman

in December 2000 but not submitted to the

Parliamentary Ombudsman’s Office until March 2001.

Complaints investigated:
The Ombudsman agreed to investigate 19 of the

complaints received. In total, the Ombudsman completed

14 investigations in 2001, of which 6 were complaints

received in 2001. Details of the 14 investigations

completed in 2001 were published in three reports:

“AOI Investigations Completed – January to June 2001”

(HC160); “AOI Investigations Completed – July 2001 to

January 2002” (HC585); and a Special Report entitled

“Access to Official Information: Declarations made under

the Ministerial code of conduct” (HC353). A brief

summary of each of these investigations is given below.

Included in the summary is the date of completion, in

brackets, a note of whether the departmental decision

was upheld and the exemptions cited in each case.

The case number and date of each report is also given.

Summary of Investigations:
In summary, the Ombudsman upheld the Departmental

decision in six cases and partly upheld the decision in

three cases. The Ombudsman did not uphold the

Departmental decision in five cases. In one of these

cases (A.28/01) the Department did not accept the

Ombudsman's recommendations.

Investigations by Department:

Ministry of Defence

A.23/01 13/2/01

• Refusal to release information about a fraud

investigation.

• Decision: Departmental Decision UPHELD

• Exemptions cited: 4c ; 4b was also relevant

Legal Services Commission

A.7/01 19/2/01

• Refusal to release a copy of an internal advice note.

• Decision: Departmental Decision NOT UPHELD;

following the Ombudsman's intervention the

information was provided and a 'botheration'

payment was made to the complainant

• Exemptions cited: none

Foreign and Commonwealth Office

A.26/01 27/3/01

• Refusal to provide copies of correspondence between

the Foreign and Commonwealth Office and the

Department of Trade and Industry relating to human

rights issues and the Ilisu Dam.

• Decision: Departmental Decision PARTIALLY UPHELD;

the Ombudsman concluded that both exemptions

were applicable but also recognised the public

interest in making the information available.

A summary of the relevant correspondence was

made available to the complainant.

• Exemptions cited: 1 and 2

17C O D E  O F  P R A C T I C E  O N  A C C E S S  T O  G O V E R N M E N T  I N F O R M A T I O N
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Valuation Office Agency

A.4/01 18/4/01

• Refusal to release guidance notes.

• Decision: Departmental Decision UPHELD; in

response to the original information request, the

Agency failed to cite the Code. Following the

Ombudsman's intervention, the Agency then cited

exemptions 12, 13 and 14. Prior to the Ombudsman

issuing the final report, the Agency cited exemption

15. The Ombudsman accepted that exemption 15 was

applicable to some of the information sought but

suggested that this did not prevent the Agency from

releasing that information in an anonymised format.

• Exemptions cited: initially 12, 13, and 14 but not

accepted; 15 was accepted

Legal Services Commission

A.14/01 27/4/01

• Refusal to release information about a legal aid

certificate.

• Decision: Departmental Decisions UPHELD but the

Ombudsman was critical of the way in which the

request was handled.

• Exemptions cited: 9 ( 15 could also have applied but

was not cited)

Medicines Control Agency

A.24/01 21/6/01

• Refusal to provide papers relating to changes in

certain identified drugs.

• Decision: Departmental Decision UPHELD

• Exemptions cited: 9

Department of Trade and Industry

A.20/01 22/6/01

• Refusal to provide details of appraisal scores for an

unsuccessful grant application and other documents

relating to a disputed telephone conversation.

• Decision: Departmental Decision UPHELD

• Exemptions cited: 2, 7(a) and 4(a)

Driving Standards Agency

A.31/01 12/7/01

• Refusal to provide the minutes of a meeting.

• Decision: Departmental Decision NOT UPHELD;

following the Ombudsman’s intervention the

information was provided. He was also critical

of the• way the request was handled.

• Exemptions cited: none

The Adjudicator’s Office

A.2/02 19/7/01

• Refusal to release correspondence between the

Adjudicator’s Office and the Inland Revenue.

• Decision: Departmental Decision UPHELD.

• Exemptions cited: 2

Department for Transport, Local Government and

the Regions

A.30/01 30/7/01

• Refusal to release information relating to a proposal

to amend the Building Regulations.

• Decision: Departmental Decision PARTIALLY UPHELD;

the Ombudsman found that the exemption cited could

be applied to some, but not all, of the information

sought. Further information was released after the

department sought the consent of a third party. 

• Exemptions cited: 2; 13 and 14 were also relevant

Customs and Excise

A.32/01 31/7/01

• Refusal to release a copy of an internal investigation

report.

• Decision: Departmental Decision PARTIALLY UPHELD;

the Ombudsman concluded that Exemptions 12 and

13 could not be held to apply. However, he recognised

that the opinion and advice in the report could be

withheld under Exemption 2. An edited version of the

report was made available to the complainant.

• Exemptions cited: 2, 12 and 13

18 O M B U D S M A N ’ S  I N V E S T I G AT I O N S



Biotechnology and Biological Sciences Research

Council

A.25/01 17/10/01

• Refusal to provide information about a research grant.

• Decision: Departmental Decision NOT UPHELD; in

response to the original request, the Council failed

to cite the Code. Following the Ombudsman’s

investigation they cited Exemptions 7, 14(a) and

14(b). The Ombudsman found that none of those

exemptions were applicable to the information sought

although he agreed, in the absence of consent, that a

small amount of personal information about a third

party could be withheld under Exemption 12.

• Exemptions cited: 7, 14(a) and 14(b); 12 was also

relevant

Department of Health

A.13/02 8/11/01

• Refusal to release responses and information relating

to a consultation exercise.

• Decision: Departmental Decision NOT UPHELD;

following the Ombudsman’s intervention the

department agreed to release all of the information

requested.

• Exemptions cited: 10 and 14

Home Office

A.28/01 13/11/01

• Refusal to release the number of times Ministers had

made declarations of interest and sought advice in

accordance with guidelines set out in the Ministerial

Code of Conduct.

• Decision: Departmental Decision NOT UPHELD; the

Department did not accept the Ombudsman's

recommendations

• Exemptions cited: 2 and 12
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The Code of Practice commits the Government to

volunteering information, as well as answering requests.

This appendix gives examples to demonstrate how

departments have met this requirement, but is by no

means an exhaustive list of the huge range of

information made proactively available by bodies covered

by the Code. This appendix also describes the progress

made by departments in reviewing previously withheld

material to see whether it can be made public. 

There are four sections in this appendix:

• Facts and analysis of the facts made available

with major policy decisions

• Reasons for Administrative decisions

• Explanatory material on Departments’ dealings

with the public

• Other developments

• Progress on review of information currently

withheld

Facts and analysis of the facts made available
with major policy decisions
Most organisations now make their consultation

documents freely available including publication on their

website. Background information is often provided with

press releases announcing major policy decisions. In

many cases this information is also available on

Organisational websites.

OFWAT

(i) The proposed acquisition of Dwr Cymru Cyfyngedig

by Glas Cymru Cyfyngedig: a position paper by Ofwat

gave reasons for allowing purchase of Dwr Cymru

by Glas Cymru – a debt financed company limited

by guarantee.

HM Land Registry

Published their Quinquennial Review in June 2001. The

full report and a summary has been made available free

of charge on their website.

Radiocommunications Agency

The Agency made available comprehensive information

on its website concerning the second stage of Broadband

Fixed Wireless Access auction, which is taking place over

the course of a year, commencing in October 2001.

The Agency has published on its website a transcript of

a seminar held in London on 18 September to promote

the award process. It covered details of the award

process and background information on broadband

technology and the market opportunity for Broadband

Fixed Wireless Auction. The Agency’s draft spectrum

strategy Strategy for the Future Use of the Radio

Spectrum in the UK: 6th edition was also published last

year. This gives a detailed breakdown of present use of

the radio spectrum and a forward look at how this

might change in response to technical and market

developments.

Countryside Agency

The Agency published background material, including

a research directory and funding directory on their

website with the launch of their major new Market

Town programme. These directories offer access to

research reports and useful additional information

that can support communities in carrying out a market

town healthcheck.

Lord Chancellor’s Department

The Government announced in January 2001 that it

intended to ask Parliament to repeal Part II of the Family

Law Act 1996. In the light of the findings from the Final

Evaluation Report into information meetings, the

Government was not satisfied that the divorce provisions
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in Part II would fulfil the principles of Part I of the Act of

saving saveable marriages, and bringing marriages which

have broken down to an end with the minimum distress

to the parties and children affected. The summary report

and the full report of the research was made available on

the Department’s website at the time of the

announcement.

Ministry of Defence

At an operational level, the Ministry of Defence was

involved in Operation Veritas in Afghanistan. This was

the response to the events of 11 September. The Ministry

of Defence website provided a large amount of up-to-

date information on the Operation including Ministerial

statements, House of Commons debates, maps, photos

and background information.

Reasons for Administrative decisions
Many organisations whose main business involves

making decisions that directly affect individuals, such as

The Benefits Agency, routinely give reasons for the many

decisions they make. Other decisions have an impact

on a much wider range of people than the person

directly affected by that decision. In these situations

organisations are encouraged to make their reasons for

those decisions more widely available. Below are some

examples.

OFWAT

• Interim decisions for the price limits for the three

water companies: the text of letters from the Director

General of Water Services to the Managing Directors

of the companies, setting out the reasons for the

determinations, was put on the web.

• Background to the decision to publish future

regulatory capital values given in two public domain

letters to Managing Directors of water companies

(MD 172 and MD 173)

Child Support Agency

The Agency has fully implemented decision making and

appeals streamlining in their decision making and

appeals processes and have continued to provide reasons

with decisions together with contact details should

customers wish to discuss how the decision was reached.

Customers can also request a face to face interview.

Ministry of Defence

A proposal was made in April 2001 that, in light of the

findings of Land Quality Assessments, significant

remediation work should be undertaken at RAF Portreath

(formerly Chemical Defence Establishment (CDE)

Nanceduke). The proposal was discussed with Kerrier

District Council and the Environment Agency, and they

were provided with copies of the Land Quality

Assessment reports and the Technical Report ‘Closure of

CDE Nanceduke’ dated November 1980. A copy of the

technical report was also placed in the House of

Commons library.

Explanatory material on Departments’ dealings
with the public
The Code of Practice requires authorities to make

available full information about how their public services

are run, how much they cost, who is in charge, and what

complaints and redress procedures are available. The

Code also requires organisations to publish full and,

where possible, comparable information about what

services are being provided, what targets are set and

what standards of service are expected and the results

achieved. In many organisations, this information is

available in their annual reports and on their websites.

Below are some more specific examples from 2001.

The Department of Health

• The Department launched ‘Your Guide to the NHS’

in January 2001 as a replacement to the Patient’s

Charter. The guide is aimed at helping patients and

the public to use the NHS more effectively and get

the best out of their local services. It has taken into

account new and developing services, setting out

standards and services drawn from the NHS Plan.

• The Department’s circulars are accessible via a

database on the Department’s website at

www.doh.gov.uk the database is updated daily. Also

available are details of all departmental publications,

many of which are also accessible on the website. 

The Patent Office

Two new manuals were published in 2001. The New

Hearing Officer’s Manual and The new Litigation Manual

can both be purchased from the Office, but, along with

The Manual of Patent Practice, these have been made

freely available on the Office’s website. Also available

free of charge is a new booklet Deciding Patent Disputes
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in the Patent Office. The booklet explains the Office’s

role in resolving patent disputes and what to do if you

want to start proceedings or if someone wants to start

proceedings against you. A customer feedback page

has also been introduced on the website to encourage

customers to give constructive feedback.

Legal Services Commission

The Commission publishes new guidance and updates

periodically in the Commission’s newsletter, Focus, that

is sent out to the legal profession with which the

Commission deals. Copies of the Newsletter are also

displayed on the Commission’s website,

www.legalservices.gov.uk, along with relevant statutory

instruments and guidance on decision making under

the Commission’s Funding Code. The LSC Manual is

also available, for a charge, in three ring binders, or on

CD-ROM. The manual contains guidance on numerous

topics, including the Access to Justice Act 1999 and the

Funding Code.

The Inland Revenue

During 2001, the Revenue replaced its internal guidance

on dealing with National Insurance contributions with

new, electronic guidance the – National Insurance

Manual. The Manual can be accessed from the Inland

Revenue website. The precursor to the Manual was the

Field Officers Manual which was not generally available

outside the Inland Revenue.

The Insolvency Service

In March 2001, the service published for the first time

The Insolvency Service Charter – The standards of service

you can expect in 2000/01. The Charter includes

information about the Services’ performance against the

service standards. Their revised publication, A Guide to

the Insolvency Service now includes a review of

performance against Key Targets and Indicators. This

information is also published on the Service website.

Passport Agency

The Passport Agency is introducing display boards in all

public counter areas to show service standards and what

customers can expect and how the Agency is performing.

This information is updated monthly.

Progress on review of information currently
withheld
Department for Education and Skills

The Department, unlike other Departments, has a policy

whereby all records selected for permanent preservation

are opened to the public immediately instead of waiting

for the 30-year rule.

Ministry of Defence

The Ministry received a request under the Code for a

report produced by the Flying Saucer Working Party of

the Directorate of Scientific Intelligence and Joint

Technical Intelligence Committee dated June 1951. This

report was mentioned on files at the Public Record Office

but no copy could be found on any related files still held

in the MOD. The applicant was informed accordingly.

However, some nine months later, during a routine

review of unrelated files held for more than 50 years the

Report did come to light. It was duly considered with a

view to release and then provided to the original

applicant following the redaction of two short passages

under Section 3(4) of the Public Record Act. Copies of

the Report have also been sent to others who have heard

of its release and requested a copy. It is also now open

for inspection at the Public Record Office.

Many organisations are reviewing the information they

currently hold as part of their preparations for the

implementation of the FOI Act.

The Environment Agency

As part of the Agency’s work on developing their

Publication Scheme under the Freedom of Information

Act, they have started work on the production of a

database of information classes that can be categorised

as ‘approved for access’ by the public. This classification

is incorporated into their pilot electronic document

management system. They intend to combine all existing

advice with ongoing proactive work to create as

comprehensive as possible database of publicly

accessible information. They intend to classify

information that is not approved for access as ‘to be

assessed’ in connection with public access so that no

information, with the exception of national security data

is ever pre-defined as confidential.

Strategic Rail Authority

The Authority are currently considering placing the

Franchise Agreements on its website.
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Department for International Development

As part of the Departments work on producing their

publication scheme by November 2002, they are

compiling a log of information that has been disclosed

by the Department on request. The Department intends

to build this log into the specification for their Electronic

Document and Records Management System to meet

the Modernising Government Target for storing and

retrieving electronic records by 2004.

Other developments
The principles of Open Government can be seen to

be followed in many other initiatives and instances

throughout 2001. Below are some developments

that do not relate to the specific headings above.

The Planning Inspectorate 

The Planning Inspectorate are setting up a ‘planning

portal’ project. This website portal will provide a one-

stop-shop for all planning matters, whether it is related

to the Inspectorate or to central or local Government.

Department of Health

The Department found that use of their website has

increased greatly over the past year and redesign of

the top pages has, and will continue to, take place

with additional functionality and improvements to

the navigation of the site planned.

Legal Services Commission

The Commission have produced a series of information

leaflets explaining the legal right’s of individuals in

specific areas of law or situations. They are available in a

number of languages and formats and can be obtained

via an order line or via the Commission’s website.

English Nature

A major step towards increased openness in the

organisation has been making the business of their

governing body, Council, more open and accessible.

Not only are papers available on the website but the

meetings are now held in public and the public are

encouraged to meet Council members and senior staff

informally during breaks. From July 2001, people with

objections to a designation have the opportunity to

make their case to Council directly at the meeting

where their case is being considered.

Health & Safety Executive

In June 2001, the HSE launched a searchable database

of its Enforcement Notices on its website. Also in 2001,

the HSE commissioned the Constitution Unit, University

College London, to carry out an external audit of its

openness policies and practices. An interim report has

been produced which, amongst other things, will be used

to inform the Executive’s preparations for Freedom of

Information Act compliance.

Information Asset Register
The Information Asset Register gives details of

information resources held by the UK Government.

Departments are adding more and more details of the

information held in their organisation to the Register.

Below are some examples of recent additions to the

Reigster. More information about the Information Asset

Register is available from Her Majesty’s Stationery Office,

and from their website at www.hmso.gov.uk

HM Land Registry has now listed over 70 items of

published and unpublished information on the

Information Asset Register. The unpublished items on

the Register will be reviewed from a public interest

standpoint in their preparations for establishing their

Publication Scheme as required by the FOI Act.

The Radiocommunications Agency also published its

Information Asset register on the HMSO Inforoute

website in 2001.

Pilot Publication Schemes
Section 19 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000

places a duty on every public authority to adopt and

maintain a Publication Scheme. Publication Schemes give

details of the classes of information that an authority

publishes proactively and how. The Schemes indicate

a commitment to make available as much information

as possible and will look at how best to transmit the

information to those who need to know more.

In the run up to the implementation of the Act, the

Information Commissioner has linked up with five public

authorities covered by the Code of Practice on Access to

Government Information to run pilot Schemes. Details of

the five pilots is given below.

• Department for International Development

www.dfid.gov.uk
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• The Public Record Office

www.pro.gov.uk

• The Medicines Control Agency

www.mca.gov.uk

• The Ministry of Defence

www.foi.mod.uk

• The Health and Safety Executive

www.hse.gov.uk

Department for International Development

As part of their pilot scheme the Department has made

available a large amount of information; some of it, such

as several pieces of internal guidance for staff, are being

made available for the first time via the scheme. Also as

part of their scheme the Department has committed to

making available the minutes and papers of the

Department’s top committees and Management Board

meetings on the Web site for the first time.
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